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M E M O R A N D U M
TO:

Allegheny County Council

FROM:
Michael H. Wojcik



Allegheny County Solicitor

DATE:

October 19, 2004

RE:

Legal Opinion:  Bill No. 1438-04

This is in response to your request for a legal opinion concerning Bill No. 1438-04.  This bill ostensibly would require a background check for employees of hotel, motel and lodging establishments in Allegheny County.

This Department has carefully consulted and reviewed such legal and other authorities that is has deemed necessary to render this opinion.  Based upon this Department’s review, it is our opinion that the bill as drafted is not an appropriate exercise of power by Allegheny County Council.

The Home Rule Charter and Optional Plans Law, 53 Pa.Con.Stat. § 2901, et seq., places certain limitations upon what a home rule municipality, including Allegheny County may and may not do.  In particular, Section 2962(f) states:

Regulation of business and employment.—A municipality which adopts a home rule charter shall not determine duties, responsibilities or requirements placed upon businesses, occupations and employers, . . . except as expressly provided by statutes which are applicable in every part of this Commonwealth or which are applicable to all municipalities or to a class or classes of municipalities.

53 Pa.Con.Stat. § 2962(f)(emphasis added).  The bill would place a duty, responsibility or requirement upon a class of businesses, occupations and employers within Allegheny County, namely, an obligation to run background checks on certain employees in the hospitality industry.  There is no enabling legislation that has been enacted at the state level authorizing Allegheny 

County to implement such regulation.  Accordingly, it is our opinion that this bill would be invalid if enacted.

